[image: image2.png]OFFICE OF FAIR TRADING trading standards
& Institute LACORS

promoting quality regulation

CONSUMER

S
=3
G~
2 2
—_— =
=

economic
development
consumer
education

the environment





Local Authority Trading Standards Services – Councillors’ Handbook
2Introduction


3Local Authority Trading Standards Services
improving Public Health


5Local Authority Trading Standards Services
reducing Crime and Disorder


9Local Authority Trading Standards Services
protecting The Environment


12Local Authority Trading Standards Services
promoting Economic Development


15Local Authority Trading Standards Services
Educating and Empowering Consumers


17Local Authority Trading Standards Services
and Prioritisation


19Useful Organisations





Introduction


What do Local Authority Trading Standards Services do?

A recent government review recognised that Local Authority Trading Standards Services (with Environmental Health Services) are the largest enforcement operation in England. The report went on to say: 

‘Local authority regulatory services play a crucial role in their local communities. In terms of impacting on business, and in delivering regulatory objectives for government, the importance of these services cannot be underestimated.

…they serve as a key source of advice to business, especially small businesses. They deliver both national and local regulatory objectives, supporting the delivery of a wide range of policy areas in the process.’

There are over 200 Local Authority Trading Standards Services in the UK. Whilst they all provide the same core services, protecting consumers and helping and encouraging legitimate businesses, they vary in the range of functions and manner in which they deliver them. 

The contribution that they make to health, safety and economic wellbeing is often taken for granted. Yet you only need consider how many ‘good news’ stories there are about the work of Local Authority Trading Standards Service to appreciate their worth.

As a councilor you have a powerful influence on this contribution. This booklet has been designed to assist you utilise the range of activities carried out by your Local Authority Trading Standards Service.

Each chapter helps you understand how Local Authority Trading Standards Services: 

· play a fundamental part in protecting the public and promoting
fair trading 

· provide help and advice to consumers and businesses.

Local Authority Trading Standards
Services improving Public Health

‘Poor diets cost the NHS £6bn a year in ill-health
– three times as much as smoking’ (BBC: 2007)

Did you think that the public health role of Local Authority Trading Standards Services was to prevent the sales of tobacco, alcohol and solvents to under-age children? You would be right, but there’s more! Trading Standards Officers also make a significant contribution to other aspects of health and wellbeing; often areas you may not immediately think of. 

In 2003 The Trading Standards Institute commissioned a report called ‘Making the Connection’. It concluded that Local Authority Trading Standards Services make a major contribution to targets for life expectancy and to the reduction of disease, accidents and mental health problems. 
Much has been written and reported in the media about the relationship between diet and health and ‘well being’. For example, how often do we hear reports about the increase of obesity and illness in young people? And, more recently reports on the link between poor diet and anti-social behaviour. 

In many councils Local Authority Trading Standards Services play key roles concerning diet and nutrition by acting against inaccurate or incomplete food labelling, ensuring that compositional standards are met and additives, such as salt, are kept at safe and healthy levels. They often work with industry to ensure that the integrity of advertising and promotion in this area is maintained.

Local Authority Trading Standards Services help ensure the health and integrity of the food chain by ensuring that farmed animals are disease free, healthy, and fully traceable before they enter the food chain. 

There has been some excellent work by Local Authority Trading Standards Services in the public health area. However more work needs to be done. Councils need to further develop their understanding of the new public health agenda and the critical contribution that Local Authority Trading Standards Services can make. 

	Case Study

Lancashire County Council Trading Standards Service
Lancashire Trading Standards Service is a key partner in the Smoke-free Cumbria and Lancashire Partnership (SCALP).

Counterfeit tobacco has now replaced smuggled duty-free tobacco as the most widely available substitute of full-price packs. Counterfeit tobacco sales were shown to be widespread in shops in poorer areas of the region and car boot sales. 

Lancashire County Council Trading Standards Service head a project aimed at raising awareness of the issues surrounding counterfeit tobacco, with both business and consumers.
Lancashire works with: 

· five of the regions primary care trusts

· Fire and rescue service

· Action on Smoking and Health (ASH).

They launched a consumer and business awareness campaign listing health dangers, legal penalties and harm to the local economy. These were distributed at car boot sales and other appropriate locations.


	Insert your case study here



Local Authority Trading
Standards Services reducing
Crime and Disorder

‘The total cost of crimes against individuals and
households in 2003/04 was estimated to be
around £36.2bn’ (Home Office: 2005)

The Local Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategies (2005) paper set out three key roles for Local Authority Trading Standards Services, which fit directly into national, regional, and local crime and disorder reduction strategies. These were to: 

· prevent people being the victims of commercial crime in their own home

· disrupt traders from operating in the informal economy

· prevent harm to children and nuisance caused by young people from access to restricted goods.

Examples of commercial crime experienced by citizens in their own home include:

· bogus trader calling out of the blue to offer goods and services such as home repairs, double-glazing or garden maintenance

· working from home schemes

· lottery scams

· internet or mail fraud

· credit fraud

· illegal money lending

· premium rate telephone scams.

All these crimes have two things in common: they target the vulnerable and often involve cruel trickery
Local Authority Trading Standards Services tackle all of these criminal practices effectively, often in partnership with local police. Recent high profile examples have been a ‘doorstoppers’ campaign, and government sponsored anti-loan shark and ‘scambusters’ teams carrying out intelligence led enforcement.

Loan Sharks was set up as a pilot in Birmingham and Glasgow, but is now being rolled out across the UK. In Birmingham alone the Loan Sharks team shut down loan books of almost £2million, money that would have been demanded from some of the poorest people in the Midlands.

There are currently three Scambusters teams around the UK. The teams, although in their infancy, are extremely successful in tackling problems, such as rogue traders, that cross local authority borders. One recent example saw the seizure of 13,760 illicit cigarettes and 18.2kg of illicit hand-rolling tobacco by the North East Scambusters Team.       

The informal economy

In partnership with industry, and national regulators such as the Office of Fair Trading, Local Authority Trading Standards Services tackle loss of tax revenue and the uneven playing field created by the informal economy. This can be: 

· product counterfeiting (for example DVDs and clothing)

· reintroduction of stolen goods to the market place

· criminal deceptions or fraud (for example car clocking and illegal property repairs)

· contaminated food

· unsafe goods (for example toys and fireworks)

Youth disorder 

Anti-social behaviour caused by young people is an increasing problem affecting the lives of many members of the community. Resolving the problem requires the efforts of a multitude of local agencies.

Local Authority Trading Standards Services are often at the centre of such partnerships and are ideally placed to engage with the youth disorder agenda regulating the sale of age-restricted goods such as fireworks, knives, alcohol, cigarettes and spray paint.
Proceeds of Crime

Local Authority Trading Standards Services are increasingly involved in ensuring that assets gained through criminal activities are confiscated using proceeds of crime legislation. This helps act as a deterrent by sending a message to rogue traders and other criminals that crime doesn’t pay! Many local authorities now employ officers to carry out confiscation work themselves, or in partnership with the police and Assets Recovery Agency. Since April 2006 local councils have been allowed to keep up to a third of any assets recovered.   

	Case Study

Cardiff Trading Standards Service: counterfeiting case 

In 2004 Cardiff Trading Standards Service, in partnership with HM Revenue and Customs, seized 259 items from two rogue traders, who were importing counterfeit goods from the Far East.
The two defendants pleaded guilty and were imprisoned for three months under the Trade Marks Act 1994. The two were also investigated by a regional assets recovery team, who found that both had benefited substantially from the illegitimate practice they had been engaged in.
In August 2004 Cardiff Crown Court ordered the defendants to pay a combined sum of £81,500 in realisable assets, or face confiscation orders and an additional nine months in prison. The two were given 12 months to pay this sum.


	Insert your case study here



Local Authority Trading
Standards Services protecting
the environment

‘Packaging has increased by 12% between 1999 and 2005, and now accounts for one-third of an average household's total waste’ (DEFRA: 2006)
The environment agenda is one of the most high profile current political concerns. As governments and international groups such as the G8 set targets to help minimise our environmental impact, it is Local Authority Trading Standards Services that ensure that environmental issues are addressed at a local level.  

The Stern Report (2006) identified three elements of policy that are required for an effective response to climate change: 

· carbon pricing

· technology policy 

· energy efficiency

As well as policing environmental detriment generally, Local Authority Trading Standards Services contribute to the energy efficiency element by enforcing legislation that allows environmentally conscious consumers to compare the energy efficiency of electrical products and even buildings.

Other examples of where Local Authority Trading Standards Services impact on the environment include:

· regulation of excess packaging

· enforcing controls regarding lead and sulphur content in fuel 

· controlling the sale of anti-fouling paints and treatments 

· controlling the disposal of animal by-products to control diseases in both animals and the public

· enforcing requirements for businesses to identify the dangers of the chemicals they supply.

	Case Study (1)

Dorset County Council Trading Standards Service
In August 2004 a company called Simple Solar Ltd supplied a solar water heating system, with roof mounted solar panels, to a Dorset consumer. 

Their promotional flyer claimed that up to 70 per cent could be saved on energy bills and their system could heat a central heating system. Experts later researched the performance of the system and showed these claims to be misleading. A court found the company guilty under the Trade Descriptions Act 1968 and ordered the company to pay a fine of £40,000 plus prosecution costs of £27,000.


	Case Study (2)

Northamptonshire Trading Standards Service

In 2004 a company called Office World in Northamptonshire was fined £2000 for excessively packaging goods. In one case it was found that the company used a box over 14 times larger than the goods it contained.

Under government targets councils are obliged to reduce the amount of biodegradable household waste they send to landfill sites. With home deliveries expected to increase dramatically in future years, regulating excess packaging is one way of helping meet these targets.


	Insert your case study here



Local Authority Trading
Standards Services promoting
economic development

‘The purpose of local economic development is to build up the economic capacity of a local area to improve its economic future and the quality of life
for all.’  (World Bank: 2006)

Economic prosperity and development are central elements of local authority thinking. Local economies are shaped and built around the individual nature, infrastructure and demographics of an area. Their success shapes the success and prosperity of the national economy as a whole and impacts on the education, health and quality of life of local communities.

The right trading environment needs to be in place to encourage, sustain and nurture business growth. 

The work of Local Authority Trading Standards Services helps to bring about a fair trading environment in which reputable and responsible business activity, essential to the local and national economy, can succeed. The most notable contributions are towards:

· ensuring accurate weighing, measuring, pricing and descriptions of food and goods and services

· provision of business compliance advice, particularly to Small and Medium Enterprises (SME)

· promotion of good practice in the supply of goods and services (including good or fair trader schemes and training)

· protection of intellectual property rights

· reporting breaches of conduct in licensed premises

· tackling rogue traders.  

Examples of enforcement action against rogue traders are well documented and are often picked up by the media as ’good news’ stories. Yet work carried out with business – and vital for economic development – largely escapes attention.

Home/lead authority relationships and business advice

The Home Authority Principle developed and monitored by LACORS ensures a single Local Authority Trading Standards Service takes responsibility for advising and liaising with businesses that operate in more than one local authority area. The main benefit, for both local authorities and large businesses, is the ability to monitor and feedback complaints and seek advice through one contact. 

New businesses, particularly SMEs, can require common sense and practical advice to ensure they trade fairly and safely. Providing this advice at the earliest possible stage enables the business to comply with its legal obligations and, just as importantly contributes to maintaining the overall standard of trading in that locality. This can be done during inspections, in response to specific requests, via training courses, websites, leaflets and other materials.

It’s not only in urban areas where Local Authority Trading Standards Services support economic development. In rural areas, the impact of animal disease can be enormous. Many remember all too clearly the economic and social impact of the foot and mouth disease outbreak in 2001. More recently avian influenza has become a threat. Local Authority Trading Standards Services play a crucial role in helping to ensure effective disease controls are in place both to prevent outbreaks and to limit their spread when they do occur.

	Case Study

London Borough of Islington
The London Borough of Islington Trading Standards Service and the Councils Business Partnership worked together to develop the Islington Traders Scheme.
The scheme is designed to help residents and visitors to the borough identify local shops and service providers that are committed to fair trading principles and good standards of customer care. Shoppers look out for the red shopping bag logo, which indicates a member of the scheme.

Businesses sign up to the terms and conditions of the scheme and are vetted by staff from trading standards and the Partnership prior to joining. Once members, businesses benefit from access to free training for all staff on consumer law issues, updates on changes to consumer law affecting businesses, access to a free mediation scheme to help resolve any customer disputes and free publicity and promotion via the Islington Traders Scheme webpages on the council’s website.


	Insert your case study here



Local Authority Trading
Standards Services educating
and empowering consumers

‘Given the importance of consuming in today’s world, consumer skills are a pre-requisite for active citizenship and full participation within society’. (National Consumer Council: 2006)
Today’s marketplace is complex and fast moving. Credit and internet shopping have all added to the need for today’s consumer to be knowledgeable and empowered. In 2006 over 1.7 million consumers used Consumer Direct to seek advice and information and a recent milestone was reached when the service’s three millionth call was taken. Consumer Direct is a telephone and online consumer advice service operated by the OFT in partnership with Local Authority Trading Standards Services.
Consumer Direct provides consumers with advice regarding their statutory and legal rights. Issues requiring enforcement action, liaison with traders or extra support, for example to vulnerable consumers, are referred to local agencies (usually Local Authority Trading Standards Services) to deal with.

Consumer education equips people with the skills to make discerning choices, to sort out problems effectively and to seek further information and help. Whilst laws and markets may change, these skills will enable people to move through life as effective consumers.

The National Consumer Education Partnership (NCEP) framework identifies learning outcomes for young people and adults in three key areas.

· Consumer Values and Behaviour: helping people to make responsible choices and manage their resources.

· Consumers in the Market Place: helping people to make effective choices though an understanding of product information, advertising and sales techniques. Also helping people to understand available sources of information and advice.

· Consumer Rights and Responsibilities: helping people to understand the rights and responsibilities of consumers and of business. Also helping them to develop the ability to communicate satisfaction and dissatisfaction as well as the confidence to seek redress if things go wrong.

	Case Study

Cambridgeshire County Council Trading Standards Service
Cambridgeshire Distraction Burglary Taskforce organise events to provide education and advice on how to deal with bogus callers and rogue doorstep traders to older people within their authority.

Cambridgeshire Trading Standards Service is joined by members of the police, Fire and Rescue Service and St John Ambulance to ensure that older people learn how to deal with a range of everyday dangers from rogue and unscrupulous traders.

Whilst delivering important messages on everyday dangers, these ‘Rogue Trader Days’ days are fun events and provide an opportunity for people to meet in a sociable environment. 

The events aim to reduce the number of elderly people who fall prey to distraction burglars each year. In addition, this allows consumers to be able to identify and feel confident and empowered when dealing with fair sales persons.


	Insert your case study here



Local Authority Trading Standards
Services and prioritisation

There is no doubt that Local Authority Trading Standards Services have an impact on a broad range of local, regional and national issues. 

The recent ‘Rogers Review into Priorities for Local Regulatory Services’ stated that they considered fair trading, sales of alcohol and animal health to be the key national priorities for Local Authority Trading Standards Services in England.

These national priorities must be balanced against local priorities and the needs of your local area. These will of course vary greatly and depend on local circumstances, geography and the needs of constituents.
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Adapted from the Audit Commission report: ‘Measure for Measure’

Local Authority Trading Standards
Services and prioritisation

	Case Study

Hartlepool Borough Council Trading Standards Service
To assist Hartlepool Borough Council Trading Standard Service in reviewing its work, a panel of local citizens was asked to rank nine areas on the level of priority each should be given.

The priority ranking exercise was carried out in 2000 and 2002. These priorities were taken into account and helped shape Hartlepool’s Local Area Agreement (LAA).

Services in descending order of ‘high priority’ ranking 

Rank

Focus of work

2002
%

2000
%

1

Underage sales

89

91

2

Rogue traders

87

86

3

Toy and product safety

69

77

4

Loan sharks

66

70

5

Phoney prize scams

56

54

6

False description on goods

53

57

7

Misleading prices

48

54

8

Counterfeit goods

38

42

9

Weights and measures

37

42
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Useful organisations

The Office of Fair Trading (OFT) The OFT is the UK’s consumer and competition authority. It is a non-ministerial government department whose role is to make markets work well for consumers. 
www.oft.gov.uk
Consumer Direct is a telephone and online consumer advice service operated by the OFT, and delivered through regional groupings of Local Authority Trading Standards Services. The Consumer Direct Telephone helpline is: 08454 04 05 06 or Consumer Direct website at www.consumerdirect.gov.uk
Local Authorities Coordinators of Regulatory Services (LACORS) LACORS work with and on behalf of the UK local authority associations to represent, support and help improve local authority regulatory services (including trading standards, environmental health and civil registration.
www.lacors.gov.uk
The Trading Standards Institute (TSI) is the body that represents Trading Standards professionals in the UK.
www.tsi.org.uk
Home Office 
www.homeoffice.gov.uk
CLG – Communities and Local Government 
www.communities.gov.uk
UKIPO – United Kingdom Intellectual Property Office
www.ipo.gov.uk
DEFRA – Department of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 
www.defra.gov.uk
HSE – Health & Safety Executive 
www.hse.gov.uk
FSA – Food Standards Agency
www.food.gov.uk
FSA – Financial Services Authority
www.fsa.gov.uk
DTI – Department of Trade & Industry
www.dti.gov.uk
BRE – Better Regulation Executive 
www.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/regulation
LGA – Local Government Association 
www.lga.gov.uk
WLGA – Welsh Local Government Association
www.wlga.gov.uk
LBRO – Local Better Regulation Office
www.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/regulation/reform/lbro/index.asp
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